Public Document Pack

Shadow Dorset Council

Committee: Shadow Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date: Monday, 21 January 2019

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: Committee Rooms A/B, South Walks House,

South Walks Road, Dorchester, DT1 1EE

Membership:

T Jones (Chairman), C Brooks (Vice-Chair), S Bartlett, K Brookes, R Bryan, M Byatt, S Christopher, C Finch, S Gibson, B Goringe, N Lacey-Clarke, R Nowak, J Sewell, J Somper, J Tanner and M Wiggins

Chief Executive (Designate) for the Dorset Council: Matt Prosser

For more information about this agenda please telephone Democratic Services on 01305 252209 or email lwatson@dorset.gov.uk

For more information about the scrutiny items please telephone Lee Ellis (Scrutiny Officer) 01202 795251 or email lellis@christchurchandeastdorset.gov.uk

This agenda and reports are also available on the Council's website at www.dorsetareacouncils.co.uk

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting with the exception of any items listed in the exempt part of this agenda. **Please note** that if you attend a committee meeting and make oral representations to the committee your name, together with a summary of your comments will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. The minutes, which are the formal record of the meeting, will be available to view in electronic and paper format, as a matter of public record, for a minimum of 6 years following the date of the meeting.

Disabled access is available for all of the council's committee rooms. Hearing loop facilities are available. Please speak to a Democratic Services Officer for assistance in using this facility.

Recording, photographing and using social media at meetings

The council is committed to being open and transparent in the way it carries out its business whenever possible. Anyone can film, audio-record, take photographs, and use social media such as tweeting and blogging to report the meeting when it is open to the public, so long as they conform to the Council's protocol, a copy of which can be obtained from the Democratic Services Team.

AGENDA

Page No.

1 APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors are required to comply with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011 regarding disclosable pecuniary interests.

3 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

To receive any public questions or statements on the business of the Shadow Overview and Scrutiny Committee in accordance with the procedure rules as set out in the Shadow Dorset Council Constitution.

4 DORSET COUNCIL BUDGET 2019/20

5 - 16

To consider a report on the Budget for the Dorset Council.

5 URGENT ITEMS

To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4) b) of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall be specified in the minutes.

Shadow Dorset Council

Date of Meeting	21 January 2019	
Lead Member	Councillor Tony Ferrari, Lead Member for Finance	
Officer	Jason Vaughan, Interim Section 151 Officer	
Subject of Report	2019/20 Budget	
Executive Summary	The report provides an update on the finance of Dorset Council and how a balanced budget for 2019/20 has been developed.	
Impact Assessment:	Equalities Impact Assessment: Equality Impact Assessments will be carried out for any changes to staffing or services.	
	Use of Evidence: The report has been built upon a variety of information from the 6 sovereign councils including the latest budget monitoring for 2018/19, internal and external audit reports, the medium term financial forecasting model, CIPFA resilience report, the Local Partnerships business case and the PWC Case for Change.	
	Budget: It is a statutory requirement under the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended by the Localism Act 2011, for the Council to set a balanced revenue budget. The 2019/20 budget will be set by the Shadow Council in February 2019 and together with the Capital Investment Programme and Treasury Management Strategy it sets the resource framework and limits within which services must be delivered.	
	Risk Assessment:	

	,
	Having considered the risks associated with this decision using the LGR approved risk management methodology, the level of risk has been identified as: Current Risk: MEDIUM Residual Risk MEDIUM The key risk areas are around the delivery of convergence savings from the transitional staffing structure and managing demand led services within the budget estimates.
	Other Implications:
	None
Recommendation	That the Shadow Overview and Scrutiny Committee considers any comments they wish to make on the 2019/20 budget that will be considered by the Shadow Executive Committee on 11 February 2019
Reason for Recommendation	To enable the development of budget proposals for 2019/20 that will set the foundations to creating a financially sustainable council.
Appendices	High Level Summary showing how the revenue budget is balanced.
Background Papers	Reports to the Budget Working Group
Officer Contact	Name:Jason Vaughan Tel: (01305) 838233 Email: jvaughan@dorset.gov.uk

1. Background

- 1.1 All Councils are under significant financial pressure and Dorset is no different. The National Audit Office have carried out a national study and identified that there has been a 49% real-term reduction in government funding for local authorities in the last six years.
- 1.2 Responding to the challenge of these unprecedented changes in funding, the Councils in Dorset has taken the proactive approach and agreed to the creation of a new unitary council from April 2019. The new Dorset Council will replace the 6 existing councils of Dorset County Council, East Dorset District Council, Purbeck District Council, North Dorset District Councils, West Dorset District Council and Weymouth & Portland Borough Council. Dorset Council will provide a platform for delivering significant efficiency savings from the convergence of six councils functions into one. It will also provide a basis to enable significant transformational change in the way in which services are delivered across Dorset in the future. This scale of change is essential in creating a financially sustainable council that can continue to deliver services to its residents.
- 1.3 The position is further complicated with the disaggregation of the Dorset County Council functions for Christchurch, the separation of staff within Christchurch & East Dorset Councils Partnership and the creation of a new town council in Weymouth.
- 1.4 The finances of 6 existing councils will be combined into one on the 1 April 2019. The 6 sovereign councils are in very different financial positions in relation to budget gaps for 2019/20, reserves and future years' demands. The financial information is currently contained within the sovereign councils through 4 different finance systems, 4 separate finance teams in 4 different locations. Against this background of complexities and further reduced resources, producing a single unified 2019/20 budget has been challenging.
- 1.5 The Shadow Executive will consider the final 2019/20 budget proposals at its 11 February meeting and make recommendations to the Shadow Council will set the 2019/20 budget for Dorset Council at its meeting on 20 February 2019.

2. Financial Strategy

- 2.1 The Shadow Executive Committee approved the Financial Strategy in August 2018. It set out some key financial principles which will be used in developing the 2019/20 budget proposals. They are:
 - To set a balanced budget for 2019/20 This involves not using once off sources of funding to support on-going expenditure.
 - Adopting a Medium Term financial planning horizon Not just focusing on one financial year but looking forward over the medium term and developing plans to address the resourcing gap in future years.
 - Setting solid financial foundations Although 2019/20 presents some unique challenges the new council needs to ensure that it focuses upon creating a financially sustainable council that can deliver sustainable services to its residents.
 - Business Case Delivering the estimated £13.6m savings from the Local Partnership business case.

 Transformation - Ensuring there is resources to fund future transformation which is required in order to address the predicted budget gaps in future years and create a sustainable council.

3. Budget Working Group

- 3.1 A working group of members of councillors from each of the sovereign councils has been regularly meeting a couple of times each month and have considered a range of financial issues and helped to set the direction for the 2019/20 budget proposals.
- 3.2 The Budget Working Group have focused upon the strategic issues and delivery of financial strategy in their work during the year. The 2019/20 budget proposals are focused upon protecting frontline services by delivering the efficiencies of being one council that were set out in the business case and increasing income.

4. Developing the 2019/20 Budget

- 4.1 A balanced budget for 2019/20 has been achieved and front line services have been protected. The budget proposals are based upon the latest demand pressures in homelessness, adults and children's services, impact of disaggregation, cost price increases, reductions in government funding and removal of once-off items in the current year.
- 4.2 The provisional finance settlement was due to be announced on 6 December but it was delayed and announced a week later. The main points from it were as follows:
 - The Council Tax referendum limits for local authorities will remain as previously indicated in the 2018/19 provisional settlement at 2.99%, although for Police and Crime Commissioners the potential annual increase to their precept will be extended to £24 per annum;
 - The £153m of Negative RSG for 2019/20 will be eliminated by the government.
 This will be funded through its share of business rates;
 - For 2019/20 there are no changes to the New Homes Bonus deadweight (this
 was suggested as a possibility in September 2018). Instead up to an additional
 £20m of funding was added to the scheme;
 - Rural Service Delivery Grant in 2019/20 will increase to £81m; an increase of £16m on the previously planned £65m allocation;
 - Proposals for new 75% Business Rates Pilots in 2019/20 have been approved for 15 areas and these are in Berkshire, Buckinghamshire, East Sussex, Hertfordshire, Lancashire, Leicestershire, Norfolk, Northamptonshire, North and West Yorkshire, North of the Tyne, Solent, Somerset, Staffordshire and Stoke, West Sussex and Worcestershire;
 - A £180m balance on the national Levy Account will be distributed based on need.

In addition to the local government finance settlement two consultation papers have been published on the Fair Funding Review and Business Rates Retention.

- 4.3 Overall the provisional finance settlement was in line with our predictions with the most significant item being the saving of £11m from elimination of Negative RSG. This is something that we have been actively campaigning for and without it we would not be able to maintain the same level of resourcing for front line services.
- 4.4 The Shadow Executive has previously approved the principle of there being a standard charge for council tax across the new council area from April. This harmonisation process required approval from MHCLG and needed to take account of the financial impact of the new town council in Weymouth. As part of the provisional finance settlement the Alternative Notional Amounts (ANA) for Dorset Council has been confirmed at £1,582.44. Applying the 2.99% increase assumed in the finance settlement from government will result in a Band D Charge of £1,629.75 in 2019/20 for Dorset Council.
- 4.5 Based upon previous trends both locally and nationally it is appropriate to assume an in year council tax collection rate of 98% for 2019/20. Analysis of increases in the number of properties since last year show that it would be appropriate to build in a 0.75% growth factor to the taxbase. Based upon these two elements the taxbase has been calculated as being 148,087.2 Band D equivalent properties for 2019/20. Taking into account the taxbase calculation and the proposed council tax charge for 2019/20 generates income of £241.3m for Dorset Council which is an increase of £10.7m on 2018/19.
- 4.6 In order to deliver the business case a transitional staffing structure for the new Dorset Council is being developed and will bring the 6 sovereign councils into one. It is estimated that by doing this there will be reduction of 240 posts with their being significant reduction in senior & mid-level managers and in the corporate areas. In a full year this would deliver £10m of savings and having taken into account the timing and potential additional costs, savings of £5.731m can be built into the 2019/20 budget proposals with further savings falling in 2020/21. These proposals will be subject to future consultation. It is difficult to predict the costs of redundancies given that they vary significantly depending upon the individual age and length of service, the number of vacant posts and the number of staff that will leave via natural turnover. However at this stage it is reasonable to estimate that these could be in the region of £9m and these costs will be part of the overall LGR implementation costs totalling £13.5m for 2019/20 that are part of the Capital Programme.
- 4.7 The business case also identified that savings could be achieved from the reduction in the number of members and audit fees. These have been estimated to be £500,000 and £189,300 respectively. Further savings that were not included within the business case will also be made including £5.948m of base budget savings following extensive reviews of the current base budgets in each council and a further £1.166m of additional income from this process. By bringing the 6 councils together savings of £500,000 will be made from insurance arrangements, £2m of additional income from business rates and £2m of treasury management income. Reductions of £500,000 in Adults, £1.4m in Childrens and £228,000 in Environment have been identified to address stranded costs following disaggregation with a further £1.188m following recent management restructures in the Environment Directorate.

5. Capital Budget

5.1 The Assets Working Group has been carrying out work to identify likely future capital receipts that could be achieved and they have identified that around £25.8m of receipts

- could be realised in 2019/20. There are existing commitments of £6.5m to fund existing schemes that have previously been approved within Dorset County Council.
- 5.2 The Capital Programme for 2019/20 takes account of all the approved schemes within the existing 6 sovereign councils and brings them together into one programme for the new council. The programme takes account of the borrowing positions and capital receipts achieved in each of the councils and requires further funding of £8.9m from asset disposals.
- 5.3 If the disposals are in line with the Assets Working Group's estimates and taking account of the commitments there would be potential funding of £10m towards future transformation and capital schemes. It will be essential that sufficient focus is maintained on achieving future capital receipts.
- 5.4 The capital programme must be considered alongside the revenue budget: they both support the delivery of the Council's objectives and the consequences of borrowing for capital expenditure are a factor in the revenue budget. Further detailed work is required in reviewing the timings and funding for each scheme.

6. Reserves & Contingency

- 6.1 The availability and use of reserves and the revenue contingency is critical in being able to manage peaks in demand and costs incurred. This report recognises the need for such reserves and contingencies and aims to adopt a reasonable approach to maintaining both.
- 6.2 CIPFA have carried out some benchmarking on the level of reserves held by unitary councils which identified that most unitary authorities tend to maintain non-earmarked reserves at between 5 per cent and 10 per cent of net revenue expenditure. For Dorset Council this would mean maintaining reserves of between £14.5 million (5 per cent of net revenue expenditure) and £29 million (10 per cent of net revenue expenditure). Given the risks facing the new Council, CIPFA strongly recommended that the level of reserves should be maintained at higher end of the range. A risk based assessment of the level of reserves will be carried out and included within the final budget proposals.
- 6.3 As part of developing the budget proposals it would be prudent to allow for a contingency within the base revenue budget. This approach is designed to enable the risks associated with the uncertainty and process to be effectively managed. Currently there is just over £2.5m of funds held for this purpose.

7. Member Engagement

- 7.1 The budget setting process will involve members on the Shadow Executive and the Shadow Scrutiny Committee considering the budget proposals prior to them being considered by the Shadow Council on 20 February 2019. The approval of the budget in February is the subject of a recorded vote and it is therefore vital that there is a good level of member understanding and engagement.
- 7.2 The Budget Working Group and its predecessor the Budget Task & Finish Group has been the main vehicle for getting member engagement on the budget and it has met 13 time during 2018, with 4 further meetings planned in 2019. The Shadow Executive committee have received several finance reports during the year including the Financial Strategy and update on the Medium Term Financial Forecast.

- 7.3 In terms of wider membership there is a series of 3 Budget Briefings which are open to all members of the Shadow Council and the first of these was held on 19 September and further sessions are planned for 29 January and 12 February (x2 sessions).
- 7.4 The Shadow Scrutiny Committee will consider the budget proposals at a special meeting of the Committee on 21 January 2019 and their comments will be considered by the Shadow Executive at their meeting on 11 February.

8. Detailed Financial Information

- 8.1 The unique circumstances of becoming a new unitary council in April brings some practical challenges as we move from 6 councils into one. The budget and financial information is currently held in the finance systems of each council and is currently being pulled together at a high level from each of the councils in order to give the overall summary for Dorset Council. The officer structure for the new council is being developed and subject to consultation. This means that it is not possible to produce the usual detailed service budgets.
- 8.2 The process of transferring the budget information from each councils individual system into County Councils DES system is currently being undertaken and will be completed by the end of January. This will enable the detailed information for service budgets to be produced for the February budget report.

9. Next Steps

- 9.1 The consultation on the provisional finance settlement closed on 10 January and will now be subject to a Parliamentary debate before the figures are finalised. Confirmation of the final figures is expected in February but no date has been set.
- 9.2 The Budget Working Group are reviewing the draft capital programme including its financing at their next meeting on 30 January and there is on-going work on the Dedicated Schools Grant and the Higher Needs Block.
- 9.3 The potential reserves available to Dorset Council are being updated for the latest information including the predicted outturn for 2018/19 within each council. A Risk Based Assessment of Reserves will be completed and provide a minimum and maximum level of General Reserves for the new Council. The assessment of the adequacy of reserves and the robustness of the 2019/20 budget by the Section 151 Officer will be included within the February budget report.
- 9.4 As part of the provisional finance settlement the government announced consultations on a Review of Local Authorities Relative Needs & Resources and Business Rates Retention Reform. These two consultation will have a significant impact upon the new councils funding going forward. The consultation close on 21 February 2019 and the Budget Working Group will be considering both consultations.



Budget Summary 2019/20

2019/20 Comment £'000s

	~ 0000	
Previous Once Offs	1,646.8	Net effect of the items included in 2018/19 budget on a once off basis
Price Changes	7,630.3	Adjustments for inflation
Pay adjustments	6,019.5	Increases for pay award, increments etc.
Modernising Fostering	900.0	This the second of two years of investment in the service, approved by DCC Cabinet, agreed as part of the 19/19 budget setting process. Investment is to improve the inhouse foster care capacity and capability with a view to reducing reliance on independent foster care agencies.
Costs from Extended Rights to Free Transport Grant	300.0	This is spend directly associated with additional XRFT grant which is effectively passported to cover the additional costs arising in Children's Services.
Increasing funding for Adult & Community Services	1,500.0	Base budget pressures in service user related spend
Increasing funding for Childrens Services	5,800.0	Additional cost pressures being experienced as a result of further rises in EHCPs and the transport requirements that accompany these plans, in addition to non-delivery of previous savings targets agreed not to be pursued.
Increasing funding for Dorset Waste Partnership	1,372.4	Pressures from the DWP MTFP in January 2018 plus additional pressures arising from fuel prices, recyclate prices / costs and capital financing.
Increasing funding for Corporate Services	2,000.0	These relate to historic commitments currently charged to DSG which are reducing over time to relieve funding pressures
Reductions in funding from Government Grants	1,346.3	Estimate reductions based on latest information.
impacts of Balance Sheet Disaggregation	900.0	Latest Estimate

	2019/20 Comment £'000s
Revenue impact of the Capital Programme	523.0 Revenue budget costs of financing the schemes within the capital programme
Other Known Commitments	612.7 Other cost pressures such as homelessness
Contingency	1,193.2
Stranded Costs	5,400.0 Impacts on services of disaggregation of DCC and EDDC
Reduced RSG	490.0 The remaining RSG received in 2018/19
New Homes Bonus	418.3 Reduction in overall funding as awards dropping out are more than the new award for 2019/20
Other Funding / Disaggregation impacts	(1,065.7)
Negative RSG	11,000.0 Proposed to be removed in provisional settlement
Changes to base budget	47,986.8
Balancing the Budget	
Stranded costs reductions - Adults	(500.0) Savings from restructuring to address stranded costs
Stranded costs reductions - Childrens	(1,100.0) Savings from removal of vacant posts and restructuring
Stranded costs reductions - Environment	(228.0) Non pay related costs
Base Budget Review	(7,014.0) Savings and increased income identified through the detailed review of base budgets
Audit Fees	(189.3) SWAP Internal Audit saving confirmed, External Audit estimated
Members Allowances	(500.0) Based upon latest information, awaiting approval
Transitional Structure Savings	(5,730.7) 2019/20 impact from the implementation of the transitional staffing structure, generating £10m savings in a full year
Use of DFG's for adaptation equipment	(1,000.0) This is the alignment of the new council's Disabled Facilities Grant with the Better Care Fund priorities. The additional DFG funding is being channelled to cover the costs of equipment, adaptations and technology through the service run jointly with the NHS.

Adults savings - Tricuro block contract reduction

Adults savings - Non Statutory contracts

Adults savings - Service User Budgets

Childrens savings - Independent Fostering Agency conversions

Childrens savings - Secure placements

Childrens savings - SEN transport personalisation Environment Savings

Insurance Procurement
Treasury Management Income

Fairer Charging

Negative RSG

Additional Rural Funding Business Rates income

2019/20 Comment £'000s

- (500.0) Tricuro is being commissioned to deliver cost reductions in the block contract arrangement we have. This will include better capacity management driving unit (and total) costs down.
- (800.0) Review and reduction of costs for non-statutory services in A&CS.
- (1,200.0) Regular reviews of care packages alongside better commissioning through the new Dorset Care Framework will see costs reduce. Work also continuing on managing CHC costs with Health.
 - (600.0) Conversion of independent fostering placements to in-house provision as a result of the investment in the service.
 - (300.0) Budget aligned back to long-term average of six months of the year rather than full-year.
 - (300.0) Use of personal travel budgets for children whose circumstances make these arrangements possible.
- (1,188.6) This is the restructure that took effect in 2018/19 in the E&E Directorate which generates nearly £1.2m of cost savings for 2019/20. The restructure was distinct and separate from the LGR impact/convergence.
 - (500.0) Savings arising from the recent procurement exercise
- (2,000.0) Savings and increased income from new treasury management strategy
 - (500.0) This is additional income that will be created through the fairer charging programme to ensure that all service users required to make contributions towards their care pay a correct and appropriate amount.
- (11,000.0) Elimination of the reduction confirmed in Provisional Settlement
 - (89.8) Additional grant confirmed in Provisional Settlement
- (2,000.0) Additional income from retention of business rates

	τ
	تو
(Q
	\square
	_
	4

Council Tax Base Increase

Current Budget Position

Total of actions

Council Tax 2.99% Increase

2019/20 Comment £'000s

(2,307.7) Increasing council tax base and standard collection rate

(8,438.7) Increase in income from council tax

(47,986.8)

0.0